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(By Samuel Wilson, Jr.)

. The house dates from the very late eighteenth century or early
nineteenth century, with flanking pavilions added, probably in the early
1830's or 40's. The rear addition including the rebuilding of the rear part
of the roof was done subsequently.

The construction of the house is typical of the French and Spanish
colonial periods in Louisiana, a type of construction that continued in use
well into the period following the Louisiana Purchase in 1803. The house
is raised well above the ground on brick pillars. Heavy timbers placed upon
these pillars form the sills upon which the timbers of the wall or framework
of "colombage" was erected. The spaces between these timbers was then
filled with a mixture of mud and moss or deer hair called "bouzillage."
Where protected by galleries or in the interior, this construction was left
exposed or covered with a thin coating of plaster or layers of lime-wash,
either white or colored. On exterior walls exposed to the weather, the
"bouzillage" was covered with wide, feather-edged boards. When the
flanking pavilions were built, the style had changed and they were covered on
the outside with weatherboards, and, probably at the same time, the old
board covering on the rest of the house was also covered over with weather-
boards. It is also possible that new and larger columns were placed on the
front gallery and a new cornice added, to give the house a then more stylish
Greek Revival appearance. .

The plan of the house is basically two large square rooms, each with a
door and flanking windows opening onto the galleries. A single large
chimney with fireplaces back-to-back furnished heat for the two rooms.

A broad gallery surrounded the basic core, but probably before the house

was completed the end galleries were enclosed with "bouzillage" to form

an additional room at each end of the house and another small room or
"cabined" enclosed each end of the gallery at the rear. This was a
characteristic plan form of the French and Spanish colonial periods in
Louisiana which also continued to be used after 1803. Evidence in the
framing of the joists of the rear gallery floor indicates the location of a
stairway at one end, leading to the ground or basement floor. A large
hipped roof covered the entire house including the galleries, protecting

the interior from sun and rain and enabling the doors and windows to be left
open for maximum ventilation even during the heaviest summer rains.

The owners eventually may have desired to enclose the recessed rear gallery,
as often happened, and then built a new rear gallery across the entire
back of the house. At that time, the entire rear slope of the roof was
rebuilt, without, however, disturbing the original rear hip rafters which
may 8till be seen in the attic. Perhaps the builder decided to widen this
new rear gallery after the new hip rafters had been set and did so by
allowing the new rafters to extend below the old eave line, resulting in t
curious roof form as seen in the side elevations of the house. Additicna
exploration of the structure of this rear addition might reveal more /~) w3\
information regarding its original form and detail. Perhaps some of AN
original columns might be found concealed in the walls, for this was
undoubtedly built as an open gallery, possibly partially enclosed wit
wood louvers.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Kent House offers sever:},unique features of historical signifi-
cance. It appears to be the old¥st remaining structure in Central Louisi-
ana (pending completion of the State survey). It is a very rare example
of the Creole architecture of the country plantation homes found in the
area in the late eighteenth and early nineteenth century; it provides the
perfect setting for a museum of historical artifacts from the area, which
is now lacking. The home was built by a prominent French family and has
had a colorful history as it passed through several families and owners
during the ensuing 170 years.

The structure was the second house built by Pierre Baillio II
between 1796 and 1800. Records indicate that his father, Pierre I, was
a native of France and a soldier in the King's Army at Natchitoches,
where he married in 1743. Pierre II was his eldest son. Young Pierre
moved to Point Coupee Parish and at the age of 18 married Magdelain
Emelie LaCour in 1791. The wedding is recorded in St. Ann's Catholic
Church at Morganza. The couple moved to Rapides Parish about 1793 or
1794, In 1794 he was given a land grant of 501 acres north of the
present Alexandria and later received five additional land grants for
himself and his children totaling approximately 1741 acres. The land
grant which apparently covers the site of Kent House is dated 1795, was
signed by Baron de Carondelet and is on display at Louisiana State
University at Alexandria. Pierre II built one house, then prior to 1800,
started another which is the present Kent House. Family tradition
relates that Pierre started his slaves on construction of the foundation
and left for New Orleans to purchase furnishings. His was delayed, and
upon his tardy return, he found the work still continuing. This resulted
in the house being unusually high off the ground, but with the local
flooding characteristics, it was just as well. This occurred some 12
years before Alexander Fulton was to lay out the town of Alexandria, then
known as "El Rapide".

The house was built from the land itself--clay for the rose colored
brick, huge handhewn cypress trunks for the beams, pillars and floors,
and deer hair and mud for the "bouzillage" walls. Construction was by
slaves belonging to Pierre. The deep, wide windows were designed with
the possibility of fighting hostile Indians in mind. Pierre II died in
1824 and his wife in 1838. They are buried, side by side, in the old
and historic Rapides Cemetery across the Red River on the high ground
of Pineville.
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8. Statement of Significance (continued)

In 1842, the heirs of Pierre and Emelie sold the plantation to the

- Hynson family who named it Kent after their ancestral home in Kent County,
: Maryland. At Mr. Hynson's death in 1875, he left the property to his
youngest daughter, Sallie A. Hynson, who married Mr. James A. Ringgold of
NS St. Louis. They lived in the home until after his death, then she sold

' the property to the "Kent Company'" in 1905. Following this, the home changeg
hands several times, until Mr. Louis Daigre purchased it for a residence.
The Daigre family occupied the home until 1949 when it was sold to the
American Legion for a meeting hall. The Legion used the house until 1963
when that organization decided to demolish the home and construct a new
facility on the site.

-~y
LS

At this point, local citizens, concerned for the heritage of Central
Louisiana, were ignited to action by the possibility of losing this historic
structure. Following the organization of a non-preofit corporation, Kent
Plantation House, Inc., for the purpose of preserving and restoring the
home, some $25,000 was raised from 217 individual contributors and several
benefit functions to purchase the home and site a few blocks away on the
original land grant of Pierre II. The house was moved to this site in
January, 1964 and later deeded to the Louisiana Parks and Recreation
Commission. This latter action was taken with the understanding that state
and federal funds would be sought for restoration of the building to its
original state, furnishing of the home as an historical museum, landscaping
of the site, and other related improvements. Registration with the
National Park Service is sought as one more step toward the proper recogni-
tion of the Kent Plantation House as Central Louisiana's most historic
landmark.
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